
 

 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION ON COMPENSATION FOR 
ELECTED OFFICIALS 

MINUTES 
 

 
November 5, 2013 
 
The Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials met in the lower level meeting 
room of the Council Chambers, 57 East 1st Street, on November 5, 2013 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT 

 
STAFF PRESENT 

   
Kate Ali’varius None John Pombier 
Stacy Holmstedt  Debbie Spinner 
Gary Levine  Dee Ann Mickelsen 
Tom Rhodes 
Marty Whalen 

 Jill Kotsur 

 
 Chairperson Ali’varius welcomed everyone to the meeting.  
 
1.  Introduction of new Commission Member Marty Whalen. 
 

Commission Member Whalen provided brief background with respect to his professional and 
community activities. 
 
Commission Member Whalen stated that he and Commission Member Rhodes are both 
members of the Rotary Club and often have lunch together at the meetings. He inquired, with 
respect to the Open Meeting Law, whether it would be necessary for the City to post a notice of 
the Rotary Club meetings since both he and Commission Member Rhodes serve on this 
Commission. 
 
City Attorney Debbie Spinner responded that it would not be necessary to post a notice of the 
Rotary Club meetings. She clarified, however, that the City is required to post a meeting notice 
any time that a quorum of this Commission meets and are likely to discuss an item that will be 
presented to the members.   
 
Commission Member Whalen stated that he had no intention of discussing any issues related to 
this Commission with Commission Member Rhodes at the Rotary Club meetings. He added that 
he simply wanted the record to disclose his association with Commission Member Rhodes as 
outlined above.  
 
Chairperson Ali’varius welcomed back Commission Member Levine, who was reappointed to 
serve another term on the Commission. 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK             
 



Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials 
November 5, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
2. Items from citizens present. 
 
 There were no items from citizens present.  
  
3. Approval of the minutes of the Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials 

meeting held on November 8, 2012. 
 
 It was moved by Commission Member Rhodes, seconded by Commission Member Levine, that 

the minutes of the Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials meeting 
held on November 8, 2012 be approved. 

 
 Upon tabulation of votes, it showed: 
 
 AYES – Ali’varius-Holmstedt-Levine-Rhodes 
 ABSTAIN – Whalen  
 
 Chairperson Ali’varius declared the motion carried unanimously by those present and voting. 
 
4. Staff summary of 2012 meetings and report. 
 
 Ms. Spinner referred to a document titled “Report and Recommendations to the Mayor and City 

Council, City of Mesa, Arizona, Submitted by the Independent Commission on Compensation 
for Elected Officials,” which is dated November 8, 2012. (See Attachment 1) She explained that 
the report summarizes the work and the actions of the Commission last year. She noted that the 
Commission held a number of meetings; solicited input from citizens in the community; and 
were provided a significant amount of research from staff relative to salaries paid to elected 
officials in comparable cities, the history of the Mesa City Council’s compensation, and certain 
Mesa City Charter requirements in that regard. She added that Page 4 of the document outlines 
the Commission’s recommendations that were forwarded on to the City Council.  

 
Ms. Spinner, in addition, commented that it is the responsibility of the Commission to provide a 
report and recommendations to the Council. She noted that the recommendations of the 
Commission must be approved or rejected as a whole by the City Council. She stated that last 
year, the City Council did not adopt the Commission’s recommendations. She noted, however, 
that the Commission made a recommendation to reconvene this year in an effort to continue to 
evaluate the compensation for Mesa’s Elected Officials.    

  
5. Hear a presentation from staff updating the compensation data collected for Elected Officials of 

similarly-situated municipalities. 
  
 The Commission Members had no questions or concerns with respect to the updated 

compensation data. (See Attachments 2 and 3)  
 
6. Take action on the Report and Recommendations to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 

compensation for Mesa’s Elected Officials. 
 
 Chairperson Ali’varius stated that last year, the Commission made a proposal to the City 

Council after taking a significant amount of time and effort to conduct research, review and 
discuss an extensive amount of data that was provided by staff.  She noted that the Mayor and 



Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials 
November 5, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 

the Councilmembers did not adopt the Commission’s recommendations, but pointed out that 
things were different a year ago than they are now. She also commented that in reviewing the 
minutes from last year’s Commission meetings, some concerns were expressed with respect to 
the Mayor and the Councilmembers’ pay increases being on par. She clarified that last year, the 
Commission proposed a 90% salary increase for the Mayor and an 85% salary increase for the 
Councilmembers.  

 
 Chairperson Ali’varius stated that she would propose a 90% salary increase for both the Mayor 

and the Councilmembers. She distributed a document to her fellow Commission Members that 
she prepared which illustrates certain computations in that regard. (See Attachment 4)    

 
 Chairperson Ali’varius explained that by taking the 90% increase that the Commission arrived at 

last year and breaking it down over the 15 years, which was the last time that the Mayor and the 
Councilmembers received a salary increase, and allowing for the fact that the proposed 
increase would not go into effect until 2015, would result in an estimated 4.5% increase 
compounded over 16 years. She further remarked that such a proposal would increase the 
Councilmembers’ salary from $19,032 to $36,832 and from $38,002 to $73,545 for the Mayor’s 
salary. She also highlighted the bottom of Attachment 4, which reflects constant dollars based 
on the actual inflation rate. 

 
 Chairperson Ali’varius, in addition, remarked that for purposes of today’s discussion, she 

suggested that her fellow Commission Members focus on the 4.5% increase rate. She pointed 
out that over the last few years, City employees have received 5% salary increases, whereas 
the 4.5% salary increase would reflect over the last 16 years for the Mayor and the 
Councilmembers.    

 
 Chairperson Ali’varius further commented that she would propose to leave as is the other 

recommendations that the Commission made last year. She stated that perhaps the Mayor and 
the Councilmembers might approve the salary increase this time, since it will not go into effect 
until January 2015. She added that those voting may not be affected by the increase, as was 
the Mayor and the Councilmembers’ concern last year.  

 
 Chairperson Ali’varius advised that the City of Mesa has continued to accumulate a great many 

successes and is allowing City employees to receive 5% salary increases. She said that based 
on those facts, she would propose the following:  

 
• That the Councilmembers’ salary be raised to $36,832 and the Mayor’s salary be raised 

to $73,545. 
• That the annual salaries for the Mayor and the Councilmembers will be adjusted by a 

cost of living adjustment, if any, provided to Mesa City employees. 
• Vehicle Allowance: The elected officials use their private vehicles to travel throughout 

the county and should be compensated for this expense. The Commission recommends 
that the Mayor receive $450 and the Councilmembers receive $300 as a vehicle 
allowance. 

• Communication Allowance. The elected officials use their private cell phones for City 
business and should be compensated for this expense. The Commission recommends 
that the Mayor and the Councilmembers receive $80 per month as a communication 
allowance. 



Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials 
November 5, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 

• City Benefits. The Commission recommends that the Mayor and the Councilmembers be 
eligible for City benefits consistent with those provided to Executive-level City employees 
which may, from time to time, be amended as employee benefits are amended.    

 
Commission Member Holmstedt referred to Attachments 2 and 3 and inquired if the slight 
compensation increases in Tempe and Phoenix were automatic increases or due to City Charter 
requirements. 
 
Deputy City Manager John Pombier responded that it was his understanding that the City’s 
Human Resources Department contacted all of the cities listed on the documents to obtain 
salary updates. He explained that if a comment is not included in the footnote at the bottom of 
the page, staff was unaware of the origin of the salary increase. 
 
Chairperson Ali’varius referred to Page 3 of Attachment 1 and inquired if staff updated any of 
the bullet points related to a summary of the Commission discussions and if anything had 
changed. She cited, for instance, that Mesa’s population increased by approximately 11,000 
people and questioned whether the salary rankings for Mesa’s Mayor and the Councilmembers 
had changed.   
 
Mr. Pombier clarified that it appeared as though the rankings have not changed based on the 
updated numbers. He noted that the Councilmembers are still ranked No. 6 out of the six cities 
surveyed, and the Mayor’s salary ranked No. 5 out of the six cities.   
 
Commission Member Levine commented that since the cost of gasoline and vehicle 
maintenance continues to grow, he would suggest that the vehicle allowance be increased to 
$550 for the Mayor and $350 for the Councilmembers. 
 
Responding to a question from Chairperson Ali’varius, Mr. Pombier explained that with respect 
to car allowances, Executive staff receive a set amount per month ($300), but do not receive 
reimbursement for expenses that are incurred above that amount.    
 
In response to a comment from Commission Member Rhodes, Chairperson Ali’varius clarified 
that she did not make a formal motion, but simply brought forward a proposal for discussion 
purposes.   
 
Commission Member Rhodes inquired if Commission Member Levine’s proposal relative to 
increasing the vehicle allowance would be appropriate if a formal motion had not been made or 
seconded. 
 
Ms. Spinner clarified that if Chairperson Ali’varius has not made a formal motion on the floor, 
she could incorporate Commission Member Levine’s comment into her motion if she chose to 
do so.  
 
Commission Member Rhodes stated that he would withdraw his inquiry. 
 
Chairperson Ali’varius inquired if her fellow Commission Members were comfortable with the 
manner in which they were proceeding at today’s meeting. She commented that the 
Commission previously took an extensive period of time to collectively come up with a proposal 



Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials 
November 5, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 

and said that she is now proposing a slight amendment to that proposal. She added that 
Commission Member Levine is offering a further amendment, with which she is in agreement. 
 
It was moved by Chairperson Ali’varius, that the compensation for Mesa’s Elected Officials be 
as follows: That the Mayor’s salary be increased to $73,545; that the Councilmembers’ salary 
be increased to $36,832; that the Mayor and the Councilmembers are eligible for cost of living 
adjustments, if any, provided to Mesa City employees; that the Mayor and the Councilmembers 
would receive $550 and $350 respectively per month car allowance and an $80 per month 
communication allowance; and that the Mayor and the Councilmembers would be eligible for 
City benefits consistent with those provided to Executive-level City employees.  
 
Commission Member Whalen seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion ensued relative to the $80 per month communication allowance; that the Mayor and 
the Councilmembers use their private cell phones for City business and also utilize City-
provided iPads; that when the Mayor or the Councilmembers’ cell phone contracts expire, the 
City does not replace those devices; that Executive-level City employees receive an $80 per 
month communication allowance; and that as a result of the above-referenced discussion, the 
Commission Members were comfortable with the $80 per month communication allowance. 
 
Chairperson Ali’varius called for the vote. 
 
Chairperson Ali’varius declared the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Spinner explained that the Ordinance states that the Commission will provide a report and 
recommendations to the City Council regarding this matter. She stated that with the 
Commission’s permission, she has made a few revisions to last year’s “Report and 
Recommendations to the Mayor and City Council” and has also handwritten in the changes that 
were discussed today. (See Attachment 5)  
 
Ms. Spinner distributed copies of the document to the Commission Members and highlighted 
the various modifications. She stated that if the Commission Members were comfortable with 
the revisions, staff would simply forward on this report to the City Council and the Commission 
would not have to meet again this year. She added that the last page of the document includes 
signature lines for each of the Commission Members, but suggested that if there were no 
objections, it would only be necessary for the Chairperson to sign it.  
 
In response to a question from Commission Member Whalen, Ms. Spinner clarified that the 
Ordinance states that the Commission will meet at least every two years.  
 
Commission Member Whalen commented that the Ordinance provides a mechanism to ensure 
that the City “does not fall behind again” with respect to the Mayor and the Councilmembers’ 
salaries. 
 
Responding to a question from Commission Member Rhodes, Ms. Spinner explained that once 
the Commission has adopted the report, it will be placed on the City Council agenda at the 
request of the City Manager, the Mayor or three Councilmembers. She reiterated that per the 
Arizona Constitution, the salaries will not be adjusted until January 2015.   



Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials 
November 5, 2013 
Page 6 
 
 

Chairperson Ali’varius stated that the Commission Members were comfortable with the revisions 
included on Attachment 5. 
 
It was moved by Commission Member Rhodes, seconded by Commission Member Whalen, that 
the “Report and Recommendations to the Mayor and City Council” dated November 5, 2013 be 
approved.  
 
Chairperson Ali’varius declared the motion carried unanimously.  

  
7. Discuss dates for future meetings. 
 
 Chairperson Ali’varius inquired if the Commission Members would like to reconvene a year from 

now or two years from now.  
 
 Commission Member Rhodes stated that if the City Council approves the Commission’s 

recommendations, he would see no need for the Commission to meet until two years from now. 
He noted, on the other hand, if the City Council does not approve the Commission’s 
recommendations, it would be appropriate for the Commission to meet in 2014. 

 
 In response to a question from Chairperson Ali’varius, Ms. Spinner verified that as Chairperson, 

she could call a meeting at any time she chose to do so.  
 
 Chairperson Ali’varius thanked everyone for their attendance.  
  
8. Adjournment. 
 
 Without objection, the Independent Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials meeting 

adjourned at 5:04 p.m. 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Independent 
Commission on Compensation for Elected Officials held on the 5th day of November, 2013.  I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
DEE ANN MICKELSEN, CITY CLERK 

 
 
pag 
(attachments – 5) 



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 1
Page 1 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 1
Page 2 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 1
Page 3 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 1
Page 4 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 1
Page 5 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 2
Page 1 of 2



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 2
Page 2 of 2



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 3
Page 1 of 2



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 3
Page 2 of 2



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 4
Page 1 of 1



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 5
Page 1 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 5
Page 2 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 5
Page 3 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 5
Page 4 of 5



afantas
Text Box
Independent Commission
November 5, 2013
Attachment 5
Page 5 of 5




